
MEETING: Children and Young People's Trust 
Executive Group Meeting

DATE: Thursday, 28 September 2017
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Level 3, Room 3, Westgate Plaza One

AGENDA

1.  Apologies   14:00

2.  Feedback from the Front Line  (Verbal Report) 
An opportunity for colleagues to share real examples of good practice or 
challenges on the front line

3.  Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest  
(Verbal Report) 

4.  Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 21 July 2017 - for accuracy  
(Pages 5 - 12) 

4.1  Action Log/Matters Arising  (Pages 13 - 14)

Updates on Progress / Discussion

5.  Work of the Alliance Board  (Pages 15 - 20) 14:15
(Margaret Libreri)

6.  Barnsley Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (BMASH) Information Sharing 
Agreement  (Pages 21 - 58) 14:30
(Monica Green)

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (1) Information relating to any individual.

7.  Tackling Child Poverty and Improving Family Life  (Pages 59 - 62) 14:45
(Key area for improvement: Early Help)
(Andrea Hoyland / Jayne Hellowell)

8.  Supporting Children, Young People and Families to make healthy lifestyles  
(Pages 63 - 72) 15:05
(Alicia Marcroft)

5 MINUTE COMFORT BREAK

9.  Teenage Pregnancy  (Pages 73 - 88) 15:25
(Amy Booth)

Public Document Pack



10.  Sufficiency Strategy for Special Educational Need Provision (SEND)  (Pages 89 - 
112) 15:45
(Richard Lynch/Margaret Librieri) CONFIDENTIAL 

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (1) Information relating to any individual.

Standard Agenda Items

11.  Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board Meeting held on 15th September 2017 - 
Highlights  (Verbal Report) 16:00
(Bob Dyson)

12.  Children and Young People's Plan Monitoring  (Verbal Report) 16:15

13.  Continuous Service Improvement Plan  (Pages 113 - 152) 16:05
(Mel John-Ross/Julie Govan) CONFIDENTIAL 

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (2, 7a) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality.

14.  TEG Work Programme Review  (Pages 153 - 154) 16:25
(Richard Lynch)

15.  Stronger Communities Partnership Update  (Pages 155 - 158) 16:30
(Phil Hollingsworth) 

16.  Kendray Art Work  (Pages 159 - 162) 16:45
(Sean Rayner)

Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 13 November 2017 
 Continuous Service Improvement Plan – Confidential (Monica Green)
 TEG work programme review (Richard Lynch)
 Terms of Reference /Partnership Agreement Revision 
 Children and Young People’s Plan Monitoring, Strategic Priority Themes performance 

highlights / risks & Review
 Children’s Workforce Development Update (Amanda Glew)
 Improving education, achievement and employability In-depth report on the work of the sub 

group supporting this outcome, performance highlights and risks. (Margaret Libreri) 
 Careers advice and guidance (CEIAG) (Tom Smith)
 LAC CAMHS pathway (Clair Strachan)
 Transport - progress report (Matt Gladstone)



Proposed future dates 2018 to be confirmed. 
19 January 2018 09.30 – 12.30

1 March 2018 13.30 – 16.30

27 April 2018 09.30 – 12.30

8 June 2018 09.30 – 12.30

13 July 2018 09.30 – 12.30

7 September 2018 09.30 – 12.30

19 October 2018 09.30 – 12.30

23 November 2018 

Please note this has changed from 30 
November 2018 to 23 November 2018

09.30 – 12.30



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 1

  

Present

Core Members:
Brigid Reid    (Chair) Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding)
Cllr Tim Cheetham Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential)
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding
Margaret Libreri BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start & Prevention
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People
Amanda Glew BMBC Organisation Development Manager
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association Chair
Anna Turner BMBC School Models and Governor Development Manager
Bob Dyson Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board

Deputy Members:
Karen Markham Barnsley College Director of Teaching & Learning (for Phil Briscoe)
Nick Bowen Representing Secondary Schools (for Dave Whittaker)
Jill Murray BHNFT Matron Women’s Services (for Kevin Bowman)

Advisor:
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships

In Attendance:
Cllr Roya Pourali Deputy to Cllr Tim Cheetham
Paul Clifford Interim Head of Economic Development, Place Directorate 
Anna Marshall Scrutiny Officer
Dawn Fitzpatrick Partnerships & Project officer, Minute Taker
Denise Brown Governor Services Advisor

Action
1. Apologies

The following apologies were noted:
Rachel Dickinson, BMBC, Executive Director: People
Phil Briscoe, Barnsley College Vice Principal Quality and Student Experience
Dave Whitaker, Executive Headteacher representing Secondary Schools
Kevin Bowman, BHNFT, Head of Nursing and Midwifery
Gerry Foster-Wilson, Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools
Scott Green, South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent
Wendy Lowder, BMBC Executive Director Communities
Phil Hollingsworth, Stronger Barnsley Locality Manager
Jayne Hellowell, Head of Commissioning Healthier Communities
Patrick Otway, Barnsley CCG Commissioning Manager
Dave Ramsay, South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 
Deputy Director of Operations
Jon Banwel, Head of Service, Children In Care

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting
21 July 2017, from 09.30 – 12.00

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3

Page 5

Item 4



DRAFT 2
Action

2. Feedback from the front line 
At this point in the meeting colleagues were given an opportunity to share 
examples of good practice or challenges on the front line.

Nick Bowen updated the group with regards to 4:Thought and how they are 
really engaging with schools. Most schools are signed up to this. The training 
has been successful with a number of school colleagues now trained to 
recognise mental health signs in young people.
Brigid Reid noted that the 4th stakeholder workshop will be held on 18 October 
2017.

Margaret Libreri shared that she had visited the Darfield Family Centre. They 
are the only Family Centre to still have childcare and have received an 
outstanding for childcare from Ofsted.  Looked at evidence and impact on 
families and the difference made to child development. A lot of feedback was 
received about the difference it has made. 
There has been lots of work with gypsy & traveller families. 

A challenge for some families with complex SEN. Issue raised was that a mum 
eligible for a short break but can’t find provider – The Centre has been asked 
to see if can provide something.

Second issue raised Parent feedback with SEND – mainstream and Special 
Schools: they experience lots of frustration regarding the numbers of services 
and number of times they have to tell their story. SEND covers 0-25 age group 
but we don’t build that into the journey. Feedback has been captured and there 
is an action plan to follow this up but it is clear more needs to be done. 
However in the main it was a useful session. 
Brigid Reid stated that we don’t do enough about navigation around the 
system. People need to decide who will take a lead on this. It would be good if 
partners look at individual practitioners who become involved, go the extra 
mile, see the need and take responsibility to hold the ring and share those 
examples to show the value and inspire other members of staff.  

Amanda Glew shared that she had been job shadowing Rachel Dickinson 
recently. It offered the opportunity to go to care homes re the Children’s Pledge 
and identify good practice and things that need improving. It was a good 
opportunity to see the good work that was going on and impact on young 
people. 

Bob Dyson gave an update on Safeguarding week, it was well attended (over 
100 people) and particularity focused on the ’Toxic Trio’ The week’s stalls in 
public left some staff with the feeling of an unmet need. There is a lot that we 
are not seeing but should be seeing. There is more to be done than realised.  
Safeguarding and Awareness week received lots of publicity and was a 
successful event. 

Brigid Reid mentioned the involvement by Darton College students in the 
launch event and noted how it was powerful that  they spoke very eloquently of 
the challenges young people face today

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest 
It was noted that there is a restriction on item 10 of the minutes and these are 
to be treated as confidential.  There were no conflicts of interest declared.  

Page 6



DRAFT 3
Action

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 9 June 2017 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record. No 
amendments were required. Thanks were extended to Kathryn Wilkinson for 
taking the minutes. 

4.1 Action log / matters arising
The following updates were noted: 
April actions
2.1 & 2.2 Richard Lynch requested that this action be closed off. Richard 
stated that all feedback had been received. A print friendly version of the CYP 
Plan has been produced and will be posted on the website (link provided 
below). 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/children-
young-people-and-families-trust/.

2 Integrated Front Door, Worsbrough. No further update. Dawn Fitzpatrick to 
close 

5 Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health. 
Dawn Fitzpatrick to cross check with Patrick Otway.

6 Work of the SEND Strategy Board and Self Evaluation Framework (SEF).
Still ongoing. Going to re-work the SEF and Work on story boards which will be 
continuing over summer.

15 Continuous Service Improvement Plan. Can be closed. Been addressed 
and feedback is that care has improved.

16 TEG Work Programme. Revision of work programme achieved. 

June actions

2 SEN pupils attending mainstream schools. Margaret Libreri has discussed 
with Sue Day. Educational Psychology team to develop a package to support 
schools with children with challenging behaviour. Support plan for schools to 
pilot is for children with SEN but who don’t have an education plan and will role 
this out within the next school year. 

5.1 Foster Carers – Dawn Fitzpatrick to check with Mel Jon-Ross if report was 
shared.

7 Work of the Alliance Board. Margaret Libreri informed the members that the 
Alliance Board had met yesterday. On the agenda each subgroup’s work plans 
for academic year and also the Children Missing Education (CME) action plan.

It was agreed that Chairs of the all the groups would meet and a summary 
would be produced of all the work of the Alliance that could be shared. 
Action: to bring to September meeting – look at where partners can support the 
alliance. 

11 TEG work programme. Item on Agenda.

Dawn

Dawn

Dawn

Margaret
/Dawn

Page 7

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/children-young-people-and-families-trust/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/children-young-people-and-families-trust/


DRAFT 4
Action

For discussion
5. Improving staff skills to deliver quality services – brief update report 

Amanda Glew delivered the report to members. 

The new multi-agency training offer for 2017/18 has now been launched. 
Programme for next year has 588 attending people training. There is 
continuing commitment to training and development. Feedback on the courses 
remains positive. 

Brief discussion on understanding the impact on children and families. Looking 
at bringing in young people to talk about their experiences. Amanda Glew 
asked the group if anyone knows anyone who could come and share 
experiences it would be appreciated. 
Brigid Reid reflected that it is a big ask of service users, as it can be daunting 
and if not well handled potentially damaging though it’s great if they feel able to 
share their experiences. Brigid Reid stated that she would be happy to share 
some strategies for capturing young people’s experiences and sharing them 
appropriately.

Following the launch of the Neglect Strategy, a train the trainer’s course is to 
be delivered by the NSPCC in September. Brigid Reid indicated that she would 
like to see indicative content as it is important to get a real feel to be best able 
to reinforce that in organisations. 

Following recommendations from the board, Amanda Glew reported that she 
will be working with partners to update the Improving Skills plan.
  
Amanda Glew reported that she had attended Stronger Community 
Partnership Board in May to develop actions to support the delivery of the All 
Age Early Help Strategy.  As a result of the workshop, an outcomes report has 
been developed, which includes a workforce development theme.  Once the 
report has been approved by the Partnership Board, Amanda will share any 
actions relating to the Children's Workforce at a future meeting.

Amanda Glew updated the group re the Early Help Steering Group and noted 
that the training has been refreshed as requested by the ECG. Members were 
asked to ensure agencies are attending. Brigid Reid has seen the Early Help 
video which is really good and asked if using every opportunity in all sessions. 
Amanda Glew agreed to check. 

The voice of the child is weak in some of the assessments – how we are 
making sure the voice of the child is heard? Challenging this through 
supervision with staff.  

Discussions with parents who have had early help.  
Some guidance produced for practitioners around when closing cases to 
include “what if” planning. Checks to be done when carry out sampling.

Brigid Reid noted that good progress is being made. It’s “beyond the content” 
skills that count, interpersonal skills that make staff approachable. Sadly in 
terms of the child it’s capturing the voice of person we need to do more about. 
Use of skills beyond the obvious i.e. of non verbal cues and of what’s not said 
can make a difference. Brigid suggested that in 6 months Practitioners come to 
talk about impact of training as this would be useful for the Executive Group to 

Amanda

Amanda

Amanda

Page 8



DRAFT 5
Action

hear. 

Amanda Glew left the meeting at this point. 

6. Better Barnsley Scheme – presentation (Verbal Report) 
(Paul Clifford, Interim Head of Economic Development. Place Directorate)

Paul Clifford shared the presentation with the group demonstrating the plans 
for the Town Centre. He noted that it was not an exhaustive list. 
Unfortunately the link didn’t work as there was no internet available and it was 
agreed for the link to Glassworks to be circulated with the minutes to TEG 
members.

Brigid Reid noted that Reflections: Barnsley Youth Choir had won a Grand Prix 
Champion category – well done to them. 

Paul Clifford informed members of how a variety of goods can be ordered on 
line from local shops and collected from library: Website is shopappy.com. One 
stop shop is encouraging. 

Questions/comments were sought. 
Cllr Bruff is interested in the New Youth hub but raised the issue that the last 
New Youth hub was placed at the Metrodome and was a disaster as it really 
needs to be in town centre (Central). Paul Clifford recognised that especially 
the proximity to the interchange.

Jill Murray informed the group that Community Midwives were situated in 5 
hubs around the centre but it would be good to have a base in the library as 
currently they don’t have any town centre location and asked if this could be 
put forward to be looked at? Paul Clifford is actively seeking input. Jill Murray 
to contact Katherine Green to arrange. 

Brigid Reid discussed feed back from young people that services need to be 
central and linked to transport access, and the need to make sure to meet their 
needs and ensure that these are reflected in developments. 

Paul Clifford left the meeting at this point.

Dawn

Jill 

7. Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 
(Bob Dyson) 
Met last Friday 
Bob Dyson discussed the Annual report, this is a much slimed down version, 
we are required statutorily to publish the report to show improvements in the 
last 12 month. We are continuing to see improvements, including Safeguarding 
Awareness week. 
It is due to go to Scrutiny on 12th September. 
Brigid Reid noted that when it went to the Safeguarding Children Board, 
Rachel Dickinson had made a challenge of it is accurate but is it accessible? 
Review timing to produce a 2 page infographic/interactive summary for next 
years report to coincide with 2018 Safeguarding Awareness week. Public 
Health has done this with theirs. 
Karen Markham noted a spelling mistake on page 29 of the word ‘Principal’ 
spelled wrongly. To be amended. Bob

Page 9



DRAFT 6
Action

8. Looked after Children Sufficiency Strategy/Foster Carer Placements 
(Richard Lynch/Jon Banwel) 

Richard Lynch reminded colleagues of our sufficiency duty to Children in Care. 

It was noted that Children should be supported locally and in local schools 
where possible. When refreshing the sufficiency strategy there had been a 
recent rapid increase in the care population. 
Although there was an increase in 2014/15 it has now plateaued. Historic high 
was 302 in care it is now down to 286. 

Financial performance £0.5M above projections. 
Exceptions were given. Those exceptions gave some information on the 
increase in spend. 
There are continuing challenges in increasing the numbers of BMBC foster 
carers. Changes have been made in governance to help in facilitating the right 
placements.

Brigid Reid made the point that it’s all about outcomes. Important to hear from 
young people who have been in care and their experiences. She highlighted a 
recent SCR out with Barnsley which had noted the need for all professionals to 
understand what impact early trauma has on behaviour and to avoid solely 
focusing parents and schools accounts noting support needs to be offered 
through supervision.

Cllr Cheetham noted that it is an area that has been under scrutiny for a long 
time. Constantly challenged why we are different – this is always an area of 
overspend – it has been under significant scrutiny to give a level of assurance 
that this is an area that is well looked after. The outcomes are right and that’s 
what counts. 

Bob Dyson asked “Where does it go next?” 
Richard Lynch explained that it goes to purple cabinet (non public cabinet) 
which is scheduled for 23 August. The scrutiny is around the budget but 
discussions need to be around outcomes and the progress made and the 
things that are positive.  Lack of reliance on residential placement is an 
enviable position to be in for a borough. Numbers that we managed to keep in 
borough is really positive. 
Latest numbers 283 as of today. 

It was noted, that adoption performance remains good and that alternative 
permanence arrangements, such as use of Special Guardianship Orders 
(SGO’s) is also positive.

Cllr Cheetham stated the constant question is why we are we where we are? 
Evidencing and transferring that into readable data is quite challenging. 

Brigid Reid stated that Rachel Dickinson previously challenged in the 
performance report of registered children as privately fostered. Challenge to 
schools to find out as it was felt to be an under representation. Low numbers 
privately fostered.

Brigid Reid suggested publishing a redacted version on the Safeguarding 
website asking are there some things that could be pulled out of this? As a 
member of the public, what positive things in relation to fostering could there 

Page 10



DRAFT 7
Action

be to reflect this work?

Richard Lynch agreed to pursue this. 

Richard Lynch asked if members found the case studies useful,  
Comments from members were 

 Yes, it gave sense of need and individualisation. 
 Best bit. 
 Makes it come alive. 

Brigid Reid thanked Richard Lynch and Jon Banwell. 

Richard

Standard agenda items
9. Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Minutes 26 May and 14 July 2017 – 

Highlights (Verbal Report) 
(Bob Dyson)
Bob Dyson reported to the group noting that May was a busy meeting. 

Bob Dyson noted that there was no representative from Primary School Heads 
at the meeting. Rachel Dickinson was going to take this to the Alliance Board. 
There are an increased number of representatives but still struggling to get 
someone to attend this meeting. It was noted that pressures were recognised.

Anti bullying strategy is going to the Alliance Board 

Neglect strategy well received. It was noted that this is the biggest cause for 
children going on to a Child Protection Plan. It is a partnership document. 

The Board agreed to have a dedicated sub group for neglect that is being put 
together. Debbie Mercer will chair that.

Section 11 process, most authorities do it bi annually, Barnsley will move to a 2 
year cycle to bring us in line with other authorities, but not this year. 

100% school returns. 8 schools out of the schools out of totality didn’t give data 
on bullying. It is being queried as to why they didn’t provide information. Dan 
foster to take this back to Alliance Board.

Section 47 decision making – positive audit. 

Action Plan for Children Q has been signed off.

Performance recognises children are being assessed and is constantly being 
improved. 

Low numbers of children (LAC) entering the criminal justice system is good. 
This is credit to people looking after them. 

July meeting 
Annual report reviewed as shared earlier in the meeting

Terms of Reference for the Neglect Group agreed

Positive report from Ruth Holms (LADO). Ruth relies on agencies to come 
back to her. Most are notified within 24 hrs. 

Latest Board lay member a young lady who is a care leaver, 19 years of age. 
Bob expressed how pleased and that her contribution will be immensely 
powerful. 

Cllr Bruff mentioned the value we put on foster carers and how good they are. 
At a recent Scrutiny meeting, a foster carer thanked everyone for the support 

Page 11



DRAFT 8
Action

they get from all Partners. Bob Dyson had a ‘meet the board session’ and 
received good feedback about the help they given. Comments were 
overwhelmingly that they felt listened to.

10. Continuous Service Improvement Plan – Confidential 
This has been excluded from the minutes due to the confidential nature 
of this item 

11. TEG work programme review (Richard Lynch)
Remind members to keep an eye on what is on the programme. Let us know if 
issues around timescales. 
Took on board and agreed not to add new columns.

Questions and comments sought.
Brigid Reid noted it reflects the work being done and the productively of joint 
development and brings it altogether. 
Brigid Reid ask - is there Another development day planned? Yes, in 
November. Colleagues to be reminded about the date. 

Mel Jon-Ross mentioned the Safeguarding Awareness Group. Some 
colleagues attended and escalated some cases. Need to promote escalation 
policy more. It is positive when people escalate concerns for children. We see 
this as a positive. Contact Mel Jon-Ross or officers of any concerns.

Brigid Reid noted that we equally need to find a way to make membership 
come alive for the organisations we represent. Escalation and why it hasn’t 
happened, what are the barriers. We need more examples of where escalation 
has made a difference and early intervention has made a difference. 

Brigid Reid wished colleagues a good summer. 

Richard 

Proposed agenda items for the next meeting on 28 September 2017

 Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision (Richard Lynch)
 TEG Work programme review (Richard Lynch)
 Children and Young People’s Plan Monitoring (Identified CYP Plan Champions to obtain 

progress against outcomes for reporting to TEG on a quarterly basis)
 Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices (Public 

Health to provide an annual update on progress) 
 Stronger Communities Partnership update (Paul Hussey)
 Transport - progress report (Matt Gladstone)
 Tackling child poverty and improving family life (Key area for improvement: Early Help) 

(Andrea Hoyland/ Jayne Hellowell) 
 Careers advice and guidance (Tom Smith)
 Continuous Service Improvement Plan – confidential 
 Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board, highlights from the Meeting held on 

15 September 2017 (Bob Dyson)

Dates of  future meetings in 2017      Time Venue
29 September 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza Level 3, Room 3

13 November 13.30 – 16.30 Westgate Plaza Level 3, Room 3

Page 12



Issue and action point Accountable Officer/ 

Group

Progress/ date closed

5 (ii)

Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional 

health.  Patrick to liaise with Dawn to programme in the next 

update. Dawn to  liaise with Patrick.

Patrick/ Dawn                  

work programme

Patrick to provide update in January 2018. Dawn has updated work programme with

the date. Completed.

Dawn to add to January's TEG Agenda. Completed

6

Work of the SEND Strategy Board and Self Evaluation 

Framework (SEF).  Story boards/ summary of the SEF to be 

developed for circulation to members.
Margaret Libreri

Still ongoing. Going to rework the SEF and Work on story boards will be continuing 

over summer. 

5.1

Regarding the recruitment of foster carers, Mel to use the report 

that went to ECG around this and share it with TEG members. 

Dawn to check with Mel if report was shared.
Mel John-Ross/Dawn Richard to forward report to Dawn 

7

TEG to receive more information around the work that the 

Alliance is involved with, including the work programme. At the 

July meeting it was agreed that Chairs of the all the groups would 

meet and a summary would be produced of all the work of the 

alliance that could be shared at the September TEG meeting to 

look at where partners can support the alliance. 

Margaret Libreri/Dawn
Completed. Agenda item added to TEG meeting 29 September 2017. 

Action Plan for Barnsley Schools' alliance circulated to TEG members on 18/09/2017.

5

(i)

Improving staff skills to deliver quality services.

Brigid  to share some strategies of capturing young peoples 

experiences and sharing them appropriately with Amanda.
Amanda

Neglect training course content to be shared.

Amanda Items attached with the draft minutes and action log 21.07.2017 - Completed

5

(ii)

Stronger Community Partnership Board Event in May. Amanda to 

bring an update back to a future meeting.  Amanda

5

(iii) 

Amanda  to confirm that opportunities in relation to Early Help are 

being maximised in work force development sessions. 
Amanda

6

(i)

Better Barnsley Scheme .

Jill M to contact Katherine Green to discuss having a town centre 

location. 
Jill M

6

(ii)

Brigid asked for the link to glassworks to be circulated to TEG 

members. Dawn to circulate. Dawn To be circulated with draft minutes and action log. Completed.

7

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 

Karen noted a spelling mistake on page 29 of the word ‘Principal’ 

spelled wrongly. Bob to arrange for this to be amended. 

Bob

8

Richard to discuss with Jon publishing an anonymised version of 

case studies on the Safeguarding Website.   Richard/John

10

(i)

Continuous Service Improvement Plan

Brigid to send information to Mel around self referral into IAPT. Brigid

10

(ii)

If any members would like to attend Officer meetings to see 

challenge in action to let Mel know. All members

11

TEG work programme review. Richard to remind colleagues of 

the date in November. Richard

Actions from 21 July 2017

TEG Summary of Actions and Matters Arising - 21 July 2017

Minute No.

Actions from previous meetings

Actions from 9 June 2017

Actions from 28 April 2017

Page 13

Item 4.1



This page is intentionally left blank



ACTION PLAN FOR BARNSLEY SCHOOLS’ ALLIANCE

ATTAINMENT & ACHIEVEMENT 

Objective(s) Action(s) to be taken Start Date Target Date
To ensure rigorous 
monitoring of school 
performance and 
improvement.

Borough wide risk assessment undertaken for all 
schools and academies- Priorities identified. 

Risk assessments to fully consider Barnsley’s 
inclusion priorities alongside attainment and 
progress information.

Operational group meet

LLE to visit Red Primary schools
LLE to visit Red Secondary schools
SEO/LLE to visit academies
Secondary visits

Operational group meet
Red Primary schools action plans

SEO visits for Amber schools

SEO visits for Green schools

Evaluation of Autumn Term impact on red 
schools

Operational group meet-discuss red school 
progress

Evaluation of Spring Term impact

Operational group meet- discuss amber school 
progress

Operational group meet

Emerging priorities identified-SEO’s, EYFS Team 
& Teaching schools

Aug
2017

Sept 2017

Oct 2017

Nov 2017

Dec 2017
Jan 2018

March 2018

May 2018

June 2018

July 2018

 

To provide effective support 
& challenge to all schools 
that is in proportion to need.

CPD offer provided by teaching schools to address 
Borough wide priorities –BTSA, Tykes & EYFS 
team

Delegate funding for Autumn term

Teaching schools respond to support needs 
identified by each school & SEO

Funding agreed by operational group

Support  up and running in school- SLE/training

 July 2017

July 2017

Sept 2017

Oct 2017

Nov 2017

 

Page 15

Item 5



Objective(s) Action(s) to be taken Start Date Target Date

Evaluation of Autumn term

CPD offer provided by teaching schools to address
LA priorities-BTSA & Tykes

Jan 2018

July 2018

To challenge schools to 
secure continuous 
improvement

Outcomes of LLE visits communicated to 
operational group 

Track funding and impact at each operational 
group including evaluation of impact of Alliance 
funding

Evaluation of Termly impact -Feedback to the 
Barnsley Alliance board 

Schools not engaging receive letter from Local 
Authority/ML/RD

 Nov 2017

Termly

 

To intervene where 
performance and 
improvement planning are 
inadequate.

Escalation of concern  when schools do not 
engaged or improving

Escalation of concern and actions taken by Local 
Authority where appropriate

 ongoing

ongoing

 

LEADERSHIP CAPACITY

Objectives Actions
Develop a comprehensive 
modularised leadership 
programme for every level of 
leadership

The programmes will be designed 
to ensure that there is  positive 
impact on students’ achievement 
particularly those who are the 
most vulnerable.

A key element within the 
programme is the CPD strand 
offered by the ECCP 
( education child and community 
Psychology service)

Review governance in schools 
that are judged to be ‘red’ with a 
follow up action plan to address 
any areas requiring improvement

Ensure high quality performance 
management for headteachers. 
This resource will be focused 

Map out the programmes for heads, senior 
leaders, aspirant senior leaders and middle 
leaders

Audit the programmes or elements of 
programmes that are currently available.

Quality assure current provision 

If programmes are at the required level of 
quality, commission providers

The teaching schools are then commissioned to 
design elements of courses that ‘fill the gaps’.

Commission external body such as National 
College to conduct reviews and develop action 
plan to address any areas requiring 
improvement

Commission a group of highly experienced and 
effective NLEs from outside of the borough

Page 16



Objectives Actions
initially on red schools

Strengthen all aspects of 
leadership in red schools: 
Integrate all key elements of 
leadership development to 
provide a co-ordinated package 
of support for all red schools

Work with LA team led by Dave 
Benbow to develop a strategy for 
the Apprenticeship levy so that 
schools can optimise their 
funding for staff training 

Develop a recruitment strategy 
including succession planning 
across the borough

Provide a clear brief for each External Adviser 
which includes guidance on the targets to be set

Achievement Board rag rates all schools  
following analysis of summer results

A document will be issued to all red schools 
outlining the expectation that red schools 
engage in the following: leadership development 
, governance review and the performance 
management of the headteacher by an Alliance 
approved External Reviewer.

Please note the plan is currently under 
development

Work with clusters to map out recruitment needs

Develop a range of strategies to support schools 
with recruitment to shortage areas

NARROWING THE GAP

Objective(s) Action(s) to be taken Start Date Target Date
To work cohesively with SEND 
group to improve achievement 
and attainment of SEND children

To work towards reducing 
exclusions especially in 
secondary schools  

To deliver more bespoke training 
to support inclusion of children 
displaying challenging behaviour

SEND strategy to be shared with the group and 
information to be shared at termly meetings

Support and add capacity to work of LA officers 
to carry out SEND reviews in school

Fair Access Panel criteria review to be shared 
with all schools as a protocol

To monitor exclusions school to school and 
challenge those with high rates

Revisit exclusion criteria and request schools to 
take this on board – this board to pass on 
information to Alliance board for challenge

Springwell/ Teaching school offer training
SLE’s to work to deliver training

NTG group to devise overview of where high 
needs are and training uptake

The group to help promote these and places to 
be given for those schools with high exclusion 
rates

Sept 2017  

To improve attendance in primary 
97% and secondary schools 95%

Re- launch  media campaign – 
Big focus on new starters – flyers out with days 
and impact missed (example Springwell) FS1/2 
starter pack for school readiness
To monitor attendance in schools where there is 
no buy back service – EWO to visit these 

  

Page 17



Objective(s) Action(s) to be taken Start Date Target Date
schools to look at their practice

To offer support for young people 
through a Thrive approach to 
mental well-being

 Majority of primary schools to take on training 
as Thrive practitioners to enable them to operate 
and implement the strategies in school – 
supporting and regulating young people to be 
socially, emotionally and cognitively developed.

Training to be funded from public health for upto 
3 staff to attend per school.

Sept 2016 Sept 2018

To set up and implement  
a two year project to drive 
improvements in provision and 
outcomes for PP students in all 
phases: EYFS, Primary and 
Secondary.

Profile the cohort in each phase  Yr 7 / 9
Baseline assess the cohorts
Regularly assess the cohorts to track progress
Focus on quality first teaching and learning
Develop highly effective interventions that result 
in a positive impact
Disseminate good practice throughout the 
project in order to improve progress and 
outcomes

EYFS ( scope needs confirming)
A pilot group of primaries will be established
All secondary schools will be invited to 
participate in  at least six case studies to reflect 
what is working well for closing the gap to be 
disseminated to all schools

Sept 2016 July 2018

To increase the engagement of 
secondary schools in early help

Schools to take a lead in the initiation of early 
help assessments and action plans as part of a 
Team around the Family
Schools to access additional early help support, 
when appropriate, by referring to the Early Help 
Panel

Schools to ensure relevant staff access Helping 
you with Early Help Training (3 parts)

Schools to ensure that early help assessments 
are completed and returned to the Early Help 
Inbox within 3 weeks of initiation and Early Help 
Active Plans are either closed or refreshed after 
18 weeks in accordance with early help 
guidance

Schools to review longstanding Common 
Assessment Framework Plans that have been 
open for longer than two years and either close 
or refocus and transfer to an early help plan and 
send to the Early Help Inbox

Ensure all children referred to the Fair Access 
Protocol Panel have an Early Help Assessment 
and active Early Help Plan 

Schools to consider the use of the Outcomes 
Star to capture distanced travelled, impact and 
the voice of the child and family

Create a post to provide the capacity and drive 
to support schools to increase their engagement 
in early help as part of the council’s co-
ordination role of early help across the borough 

Sept 2017 July 2018

Page 18



Objective(s) Action(s) to be taken Start Date Target Date

To promote young people’s 
emotional health and well- being 
at whole school level, using the 
Sandwell whole school approach 
to well-being.

To enhance school staff 
understanding and capacity to 
effectively identify SEMHS needs 
with appropriate interventions

To work towards reducing 
exclusions especially in 
secondary schools  

To deliver more bespoke training 
to support inclusion of children 
displaying challenging behaviour

BECCPS work in partnership with schools to 
support them through a process of enquiry, 
reflection, action planning, and review to 
implement a plan to work towards achieving a 
well-being charter mark 

Barnsley Educational Child and Community 
Psychology Service (BECCPS) to offer 
personalised intervention with school to identify 
behaviour, patterns, and triggers and to further 
understand the behaviour. 
This would also involve consultation and 
coaching to develop staff skills in developing a 
personalised approach to developing the pupil’s 
positive learning behaviours.

BECCPS to work with staff in schools to develop 
and implement an individualised ‘Inclusion 
Support Plan’ with the pupil and parents that 
promotes agreed outcomes with  agreed 
strategies within a tight timescale of ‘assess plan 
do review’. 

BECCPS to work with staff in schools, pupil and 
family to develop a personalised reintegration 
plan that meets the pupils needs to maximise 
successful integration into their new school. 

BECCP to train school staff in problem solving 
approaches including a PATH and Circle if 
Adults.

BECCPS to develop training packages in key 
areas relating to SEMH (e.g. Understanding 
Attachment, understanding executive functioning 
and attention difficulties, Understanding the 
power of language and effective communication, 
understanding and responding to literacy 
difficulties to maximise engagement with 
teaching and learning)

01.09.17

To improve literacy outcomes for 
children looked after  

Develop a programme of training to enable  
foster carers to better support their children in 
developing  key literacy skills

Virtual school staff  to support schools through 
the designated teachers network and Tpep 
process  in planning and implementing   
personalised  support plans that address the 
specific needs of  CLA  

September 
2017

July 2018

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 1 of 3

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP

Date of meeting: 29 September 2017

Report Title: Tackling child poverty and improving family life (key area for improvement: 
Early Help).

Author: Name: Andrea Hoyland
Job Title: Think Family Manager
E-mail: andreahoyland@barnsley.gov.uk
Telephone: 01226 773839

Status of report: Not confidential

Approved by:

18.09.2017

1. Purpose of report/ Introduction/ Background
To provide a brief update to the Children’s Trust Executive Group (TEG) on the activity of the 
Anti-Poverty Delivery group (APDG). 
A sub-group of the Stronger Communities Partnership, the APDG discharges the LA’s 
responsibilities with regard to the Child Poverty Act 2010.

Partners represented on the APDG:
• BMBC - Safer, Stronger, Healthier Communities
• BMBC - People
• BMBC - Place
• BMBC  - Core:   Business Intelligence, Finance
• Berneslai Homes
• Public Health
• Department for Work and Pensions
• VAB
• CAB
• SY Credit Union
• Community Shop
The Anti-Poverty delivery group meets six weekly. The membership has representation from 
key partners across the borough, and attendance is generally good. Only Health partners are 
not well represented, CCG do not attend, SWFT is no longer represented with the transfer 
into the 0-19 Service, and Public Health has had a period of poor attendance due to capacity 
issues, now being resolved. The attendance of Schools/ Schools Alliance representatives has 
proven difficult to maintain and it has been agreed that key links back into the People 
Directorate via Early Start, Prevention and Sufficiency attendance will close this gap.

Delivery Plan
The APDG is on the process of reframing its Delivery Plan for 2017-18 to strategically align 
with the All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020). 

Page 59

Item 7



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 2 of 3

To make the most effective use of member time and commitment, the focus of the new plan is 
to target the joint and combined poverty-related activities of the membership. These are 
arranged in a theme based structure each with a named lead and task group which will 
devise, deliver and report on their associated actions. 

The task groups for Food Poverty, and Welfare Reform and Financial Inclusion, are 
established with Employment and Skills, and Child Poverty, identified as cross cutting 
themes. Performance and Workforce Development were also identified as key areas for 
APDG activity – these will be aligned to the All age Strategic response. 

The APDG will continue to support the oversight of poverty-related activities in other service 
areas and partner plans and strategies, and will support a check and challenge facility to 
ensure that activities are appropriately targeted in areas of highest need, where they can 
have the most impact upon residents affected by poverty through

 the APDG Poverty Needs Assessment, and
 the Poverty Proofing measures already implemented  in the  BMBC Impact 

Assessment requirements detailed in Cabinet reporting mechanisms.

Key Child Poverty Related Activities and Achievements:
Welfare Reform & Financial Inclusion

 Support for families affected by Welfare Reform:
o Universal Credit Support Programme in advance of roll out of Full Service 

Universal Credit in July 2017.Support for Personal Budgeting and Digital 
access 

o Preventative joint programme of work to offer targeted advice and support to 
families affected by Benefit Cap in advance of impact to avoid debt. Devised 
by an APDG partner task group, delivery involved Housing Benefit Team, 
Think Family Data Team and Employment Advisors, Family Centre Staff. 

Food Poverty / Food Access
 Alexandra Rose Food Voucher scheme secured and implemented in Central Area 

from Spring 2016, recently extended to a three year scheme. 
 ‘Fresh’ voucher scheme pilot by Sheffield University in planning. 
 Feeding Britain pilot status agreed. Food Access Network established to co-ordinate 

food poverty activities
 Holiday Hunger Scheme funding awarded and being used to provide food to school 

Holiday activity schemes in Dearne, North and Central Areas in Summer and October 
Half Term holidays

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to:
Receive this report for information and offer any advice / guidance / support as to the work 
of the APDG related to child poverty and family life

3. Conclusion/ next steps
 Task groups to be established and Delivery Plan finalised.
 APDG to support alignment of their work into SCP All Age Early Help Strategy and 

contribute to SCP Governance Review,   All- Age Early Help Workforce Development 
workshop, and All-Age Early Help Performance Framework development activities.

4. Risks/ barriers
Due to the disproportionately negative impact upon those in our communities who are more 
vulnerable to the impact of poverty, the factors below will continue to pose a risk to progress 
in this area of work. 
• increased multiple deprivation levels in Barnsley (IMD 2015) 
• the continued cumulative impact of austerity and Welfare Reforms including the roll  

Page 60



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 3 of 3

            out of Full Service Universal Credit in Barnsley from 5th July 2017.  
•          Mitigation plans are based in the BMBC and partner responses to building stronger, 
            more resilient communities and citizens, by increasing skills, employment, and 
            education outcomes, and improving the wider social and environmental factors that 
         combat and tackle the impact of poverty. As such the APDG Delivery Plan will provide 
         an overview of targeted joint responses with respect to the impact of poverty upon 
         residents informed by the Poverty Needs Assessment for the borough.

5. Financial Implications
This activity is supported by BMBC and partners with no dedicated resource.
Holiday Hunger funding (£2,600) was successfully sourced from a private donor via Feeding 
Britain, this is  being distributed via Area Councils to support activities in the target 
communities.

6. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement
(State how views of children, young people, and partners have been included)
The APDG is a partnership group as detailed above, decisions and plans are agreed via the 
partnership meetings.

7. Appendices/ background papers

None

Please note that any presentations need to be sent to the CYPTrust mailbox no later than a 
day before the meeting. Presentations cannot be brought on a datastick. 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 1 of 10

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP

Date of meeting: 28th September 2017

Report Title: Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle 
choices: annual progress report

Author: Name: Dr Amy Booth
Job Title: Health and Wellbeing Officer
E-mail: amybooth@barnsley.gov.uk
Telephone: 0122674874

Status of report: Not confidential

Approved by: Alicia Marcroft

1. Introduction

This report provides the Trust Executive Group with an overview and update of the public 
health work that has taken place over the last year contributing to the outcome “Supporting 
children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices”. Paying particular 
regard to four key areas: i) oral health; ii) healthy weight; iii) smoking in young people; and iv) 
0-19 Public Health Nursing Service - delivery of the Healthy Child Programme.  

1.1 Oral health

Tooth decay is the most common oral disease affecting children and young people (CYP) in 
England, yet it is largely preventable. Poor oral health can affect CYP’s ability to sleep, eat, 
speak, play and socialise with other children. Poor oral health also causes pain, infections, 
and impaired nutrition and growth. In addition, oral health is an integral part of overall health. 
When children are not healthy, this affects their ability to learn, thrive and develop and good 
oral health can contribute to school readiness.

1.1.1 Local baseline data

The most recent data provided by Public Health England (2015) shows that the proportion of 
five year old children free from dental decay is 69.8%, which is lower than both the regional 
and national figures (71.5% and 75.4% respectively). In addition, the average number of 
decayed, filled or missing teeth in children aged five has reduced from 1.6 in 2011/12 to 1.1 
in 2014/15.

Although oral health is improving there are still areas of Barnsley where five year old children 
experience high levels of tooth decay. The most recent data (2015) shows that Dearne North, 
Royston, St Helens and Worsborough wards had between 40 and 48.6% of children aged 
five with experience of tooth decay.  This is in contrast to Darton, Dodworth, Hoyland and 
Penistone wards, which had between 13.6% and 22.4% of children with experience of tooth 
decay.

Access to dental health services is better in Barnsley than for England; 96.8% of residents 
obtained an NHS dental appointment between 2014 and 2016, compared to 94.7% 

Page 63

Item 8



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 2 of 10

nationally.

1.1.2 Progress update

The overarching vision of the local Oral Health Improvement Action Plan is for all Barnsley 
residents to achieve a standard of oral health that enables them to feel physically, mentally 
and socially well, and socially engaged. This will be achieved through improving overall oral 
health and reducing oral health inequalities, with a particular focus on those children and 
young people who experience the worst oral health.

Research shows that the daily application of fluoride toothpaste to teeth reduces the 
incidence and severity of tooth decay in children. Fluoride varnish applied by a Dentist is 
another effective way of protecting teeth. A recent survey of Barnsley dentists (2016/17) 
shows an increase in the number of dentists applying fluoride varnish to children and young 
people’s teeth. The most recent rates of fluoride application have risen to 67%, from 59% in 
2014; making Barnsley 4th in the country for the highest percentage of applications. 

Children in more deprived areas are less likely to brush their teeth at least twice daily. 
Targeted childhood settings such as nursery and school settings can provide a suitable 
supportive environment for children to take part in a supervised tooth brushing programme, 
teaching them to brush their teeth from a young age and encourage support for home 
brushing. Locally, tooth brushing clubs have been rolled out across the six main Family 
Centres, where children are encouraged to take part in daily supervised tooth brushing. A 
Tooth Brushing Club Policy and Toolkit has also been produced to ensure safety and 
effectiveness and work is now underway to roll out tooth brushing clubs to other early year’s 
settings. To support this, an oral health e-learning package for 0-19 services is being 
developed to reflect new national guidance. 

Foodbanks provide the opportunity for targeted distribution of toothbrush and toothpaste 
packs to people whose economic, social, environmental circumstances or lifestyle place them 
at high risk of poor oral health or make it difficult for them to access dental services in line 
with NICE guidance (PH55). Work has been undertaken with the Communities Directorate to 
enable the distribution of the packs via Barnsley Foodbanks. Since 2015, 2000 packs have 
been given out to families via foodbanks.

Oral health promotion is in the current 0-19 specification and meetings are ongoing to shape 
and develop the 0-19s service with regards to oral health. From Autumn 2017, toothbrush 
and toothpaste packs will be given to families at their child’s 1 year and 2 year reviews 
through the health visitors. 

Work has been undertaken with Barnsley Hospital to improve referral and discharge 
pathways between the hospital and dentists and oral health promotion is being undertaken 
for families attending for dental extractions, which includes giving out toothbrush and 
toothpaste packs. In addition, work is currently being undertaken to improve the process 
following no attendance, to ensure no families fall through the gaps.

A programme of work to reduce sugary drinks consumption across the borough is underway, 
starting with the BMBC in house caterers, Norse, who have removed all sugary drinks from 
their cafes at Westgate and Gateway Plaza. 

Finally, an oral health needs assessment is currently being carried out to determine priorities 
for the next 12-18 months. The current Action Plan will be updated to reflect the 
recommendations from this.

Page 64



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 3 of 10

1.2 Healthy weight

Childhood obesity and excess weight are significant health issues for individual children, their 
families and public health. It can have serious implications for the physical and mental health 
of a child, which can then follow on into adulthood. Obesity and overweight are linked to a 
wide range of diseases, most notably: diabetes (type 2); asthma; hypertension; cancer; heart 
disease; and stroke. Obesity is also associated with poor psychological and emotional health, 
poor sleep, and many children experience bullying linked to their weight. Obese children are 
more likely to become obese adults and have a higher risk of morbidity, disability and 
premature mortality in adulthood.

1.2.1 Local baseline data

The most recent data from the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) shows that 
23.6% of Reception children in Barnsley were categorised as obese (2015/16). This is higher 
than both the regional and national averages (22.4% and 22.1% respectively). In addition, 
35.1% of Year 6 children in Barnsley were categorised as obese (2015/16), again this is 
higher than both the regional and national figures (34.2% and 34.6% respectively).

According to the most recent data, the proportion 15 year olds who report eating 5 portions or 
more of fruit and veg per day was 44.5% (2014/15). This is less than both the regional and 
national figures (49.6% and 52.4% respectively). On a positive note, the proportion of 15 year 
olds who reported being physically active for at least one hour per day seven days a week 
was 15.8% (2014/15). This is higher than both the regional and national figures (13.7% and 
13.9% respectively).

1.2.2  Progress update

A food strategy is currently being developed to tackle obesity across the life course. The 
strategy will be delivered via an action plan through the, yet to be established, “healthy weight 
alliance”. There are a number of key themes to be covered in the strategy, in relation to 
children and young people: 

 Breastfeeding and weaning
 School food, including school catering and vending machines
 Takeaways near schools
 Work with trading standards around reducing sugar content in traded goods

Prior to this, there are a number of initiatives that have been established, which contribute to 
tackling childhood obesity in the Borough. 

A mounting body of evidence suggests that breastfeeding may play a role in programming 
non-communicable disease risk later in life including protection against overweight and 
obesity in childhood. Breastfeeding is promoted to new mums through the Infant Feeding 
Team in line with the Baby Friendly Initiative (BFI). In particular the Infant Feeding Team 
deliver a session on the Having a Baby programme in Family Centres, as well as in-depth 
antenatal workshops, with a breastfeeding focus. One to one contact is offered to all new 
mums on discharge from the midwife and every week up to 8 weeks old. Breastfeeding peer 
support groups are also offered across the borough with a peer support model to train 
breastfeeding champions. A breast pump loan scheme is up and running, which offers 80 
women at a time the opportunity to borrow a pump and learn how to correctly use, store and 
clean the machine. The team also promote the Breastfeeding Welcome Scheme across 
Barnsley giving women a safe place to breastfeed without fear of complaints. In addition, the 
team have worked with local foodbanks to ensure that donations, and information given to 
mothers and families, do not inadvertently undermine breastfeeding and harm infant and 

Page 65



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 4 of 10

young child health.

The Rose Vouchers for Fruit and Veg is a local intervention project that aims to add value to 
the diet and health related behaviour of young families who are entitled to use the Healthy 
Start scheme by providing additional Rose Vouchers matching their Healthy Start entitlement. 
The Rose Voucher can be used in local retail outlets that sell only fresh fruit and vegetables. 
Parents can exchange their Rose Vouchers for fruit and vegetables without direct payment to 
the shop or market stall owner. 

All Barnsley Primary schools are signed up to the School Fruit and Vegetable Scheme, which 
means each child receives a free piece of fruit or vegetable each school day. The fruit and 
vegetables are delivered to schools three times a week to ensure freshness. This provides 
one of their 5 A Day portions, and the scheme also helps to increase awareness of the 
importance of eating fruit and vegetables, encouraging healthy eating habits that can be 
carried into later life. Teachers find that distributing the fruit in class groups helps to 
encourage a sharing, calm, social time. It also allows them to incorporate the scheme into 
teaching and learning. Schools are asked to hand out the fruit or veg for the mid-morning 
break to ensure that the fruit and vegetables supplied are not simply replacing the fruit and 
vegetables that might have been eaten at lunchtime anyway.

Colleagues in the Place directorate are currently working in partnership with Yorkshire Sport 
Foundation and Team Active to encourage all Barnsley Primary schools to implement the 
Daily Mile. The Daily Mile is a 15 minute, run, jog or walk outside of the school classroom 
environment in addition to regular PE lessons and break times. An awareness campaign was 
delivered in March 2017. The launch event delivered at Churchfield School attracted media 
interest from Calendar who featured it on that evening’s news. Print resources have been 
designed to help encourage schools to participate.

An audit in May 2017 identified 27 schools who reported that they were delivering the Daily 
Mile and 12 schools who reported that they are preparing to deliver by the start of academic 
year, September 2017. Going forward work will continue to increase the number of schools 
delivering the daily mile and the audit will be repeated in 2018. Over the last 6 months efforts 
have focused on targeting head teachers, however in the next 6 months this focus will move 
to other key stakeholders, such as school governors, PE coordinators and school nursing 
teams to help engage schools with the Daily Mile.

An expression of interest has been submitted for the Sport England Families Fund. This is 
estimated to be around £250,000 over 3 years to increase the number of opportunities on 
offer for families and children to do sport and physical activity together, particularly those in 
areas of increased deprivation. If successful the funding will be used to build capacity for 
physical activity through the family centres, with the aim of increasing family physical activity 
time to 60 minutes per day. For example, training outreach workers in family centres to 
deliver physical activity initiatives, utilising family centres as equipment libraries, increasing 
knowledge of other activities available and awareness of local green spaces. This will be 
piloted at Athersley family centre. 

Children and young people’s sports clubs are supported by BMBC to apply for funding 
through the Sport England Sportivate grants scheme. Currently a bid is being developed for 
Active Dearne in October – this is not children focused but will impact on families as the focus 
is active travel (walking/cycling).

As a result of partnership working between Barnsley Council’s waste management service 
and the parks service, along with social enterprise Cycle Penistone CIC. A dozen bikes 
‘tipped’ by residents at Barnsley’s household waste and recycling sites have been repaired 

Page 66



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 5 of 10

and restored and are now available for hire at Elsecar park for children aged 7 and under. 

BMBC commissioned service Be Well Barnsley continue to deliver Fit Mums, 6 week 
programmes available to all pregnant women and mums with children under 3 to encourage a 
healthy lifestyle.

BMBC is still supporting the junior park run at Locke Park; this is a 2km park run every 
Sunday and is well attended by children and young people aged 4-14.

The national Change4Life 10 Minute Shake Up and Be Food Smart campaign resources are 
shared with schools and Family Centres who are encouraged to display these in their 
settings.

1.3 Smoking in young people

Tobacco is the largest cause of all avoidable deaths and the single biggest avoidable cause 
of cancer in the world. Smoking causes over a quarter (28 per cent) of cancer deaths in the 
UK and nearly one in five cancer cases. It also causes tens of thousands of deaths each year 
in the UK from other conditions, including heart and lung problems. On average smokers lose 
around a decade of life compared with non-smokers. Evidence shows that half of all smokers 
die as a result of their habit and most smokers start as teenagers: 66% before the age of 18 
and 83% before the age of 20. The reasons young people start smoking are complex, 
ranging from peer pressure to behavioural problems but of those children who try smoking it 
is estimated that between one third and one half are likely to become regular smokers within 
two to three years. 

1.3.1 Local baseline data

The most recent data (2014/15) shows that the proportion of 15 year olds in Barnsley who 
self-reported as “currently” smoking was 10.7%, a figure which has decreased in recent 
years; however, this remains higher than the England average of 8.2%. In addition, the 
proportion of 15 year olds in Barnsley who self-reported as “regularly” smoking (smoking 
between 1 and 6 cigarettes a day or more) was 7.5%, which is higher than both the regional 
and national average (6.2% and 5.5% respectively). As these figures are from self-reported 
data it may be likely that the actual prevalence of smoking is higher, due to young people 
under-reporting their usage.

According to the recent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (BMBC, 2016), more than a 
quarter (27.3%) of 15 year olds in Barnsley have used/tried e-cigarettes, which is higher than 
the England average of 18.4%. In addition, slightly more girls (35.2%) than boys (30.7%) 
have used/tried e-cigarettes (JSNA, 2016). 

1.3.2 Progress update

The overarching vision of the Smokefree Barnsley Tobacco Alliance is to ensure the next 
generation of children in Barnsley are born and raised in a place free from tobacco, where 
smoking is unusual. This is in line with the national Breathe 2025 campaign and will be 
achieved through a number of objectives. 

Children are more likely to take up smoking if they live with people who smoke. The best way 
to reduce smoking among young people is to reduce it in the world around them. A local 
Breathe 2025 campaign has been rolled out with the key messages encouraging individuals 
and organisations to sign up to the pledge and take one easy action to show their support, 
such as displaying the campaign materials. Information about the campaign has been 

Page 67



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 6 of 10

communicated in the schools e-bulletin, schools newsletter and 365 email to schools. 

A BMBC workplace smoking policy has recently come into force whereby staff should no 
longer smoke/vape on council grounds or wearing their work badge, in order to set a good 
example and contribute to making smoking invisible to children. Partner organisations are 
also being asked to adopt the same policy. The local Stop Smoking Service has seen a drop 
in referrals but at the same time has increased the quit rate which reflects a quality service 
being delivered. 

All key playparks across the borough are now smokefree and have signage in place. An 
evaluation is currently being conducted to assess the impact of the scheme. The first 
smokefree town centre zone in Barnsley was launched on Friday 30th June; Pals Square in 
front of the Town Hall. This marked the 10 year anniversary of the smokefree legislation that 
banned smoking in all indoors/enclosed spaces. The launch was a success and attracted 
positive local media coverage. The third stage of the smokefree Barnsley programme of work 
– smokefree schools, will be launched Autumn 2017. Smokefree schools will involve a whole 
school approach including smokefree school gates, smoking policies and supporting smoking 
staff/parents to quit. Initially this is being piloted in Laithes Primary and Sandhill Primary with 
the aim of rolling this out across the Borough, in time.

Making it harder for children and young people to access and use tobacco also contributes 
towards reducing the number of young people who smoke. Working with Trading Standards 
to ensure sufficient underage test sales are carried out with retailers by a Tobacco 
Enforcement Officer. A visible proof of age/ID campaign has been rolled out across tobacco 
retailers with ID packs issued at every shop visit by the Tobacco Enforcement Officer. Visiting 
Officer ensures retailers are aware of legislation prohibiting under age sales and the harms of 
tobacco. Targeting retailers within specific areas of high smoking prevalence and retailers 
who are situated within walking distance of schools. 

Making tobacco less affordable, especially for children and young people is a further 
objective that contributes to the reduction in young people smoking. An effective 
illicit/counterfeit tobacco identification and management programme has been in place since 
2015. Information about illicit/counterfeit tobacco has also been communicated with schools 
through the schools e-bulletin, schools newsletter and 365 email to schools.  The Tobacco 
Enforcement Officer has also attended school staff training days/team meetings to speak to 
school staff and makes spontaneous visits to schools to enforce no smoking in cars with 
children travelling.  

In order to limit tobacco marketing and exposure to smoking seen by children and young 
people, standardised packaging has been enforced (since May 2017). The Tobacco 
Enforcement Officer also enforces point of sale restrictions and undertakes shutter 
inspections. All cigarettes now have to be in plain standardised packaging (as of May 2017). 
The Tobacco Enforcement Officer has been visiting shops and removing any that do not 
comply as well as enforcing other tobacco legislations. For example, Hoyland Market; seized 
400 Embassy Regal King Size, 60 L & M Red Label cigarettes no health warnings and 28 x 
50g Amberleaf hand rolling tobacco (HRT) no health warnings. This stall holder is now barred 
from Barnsley Markets.

Finally, the tobacco CleaR self-assessment has been completed by the Tobacco Control 
Alliance and the Public Health England peer assessment day took place in July. This 
highlighted the enthusiastic and passionate support for tobacco control and commended the 
progress made so far. BMBC scored much higher this time (70%) compared to the last peer-
assessment in 2013 (40%). A number of areas for development were also highlighted, which 
will form part of the refreshed tobacco control action plan.

Page 68



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 7 of 10

1.4 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service

Following transition into the Council in October 2016 the focus of the service has been to 
maintain current service delivery whilst restructuring the workforce and reviewing and 
developing delivery of the Healthy Child Programme. The service is maintaining delivery of 
the mandated functions and working to develop meaningful outcome measures to 
demonstrate the impact of the service for children, families and communities.

A full staffing restructure has taken place; staff and key stakeholders have been given the 
opportunity to help shape the service structure along with development of role profiles across 
the teams during soft consultation in April. The formal consultation was launched on the 12th 
June, all staff have now preferenced into roles and recruitment to vacant posts has 
commenced, it is hoped that this will be completed by the middle of October. 

The redesign of the HCP within the context of providing the earliest help, offers opportunity 
for reducing the complexity of current pathways across the Borough. There are many 
opportunities presented by the redesign to strengthen, build on and integrate with existing 
developments including the approach to improving readiness for school and providing Early 
Help to families. 

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to:

2.1 Encourage early year’s settings to implement toothbrushing clubs with Public Health 
support.

2.2 Encourage good oral health in children’s settings through promotion of toothbrushing and 
regular visits to the dentist.

2.3 Commit to and promote the Breathe 2025 pledge in their organisations.

2.4 Ensure the BMBC workplace smoking policy is followed and adopted by their 
organisations.

2.5 Promote the smokefree schools pilot to Primary education settings. 

2.6 Engage with the Public Health Forum on food and raise the profile of low fat/sugar/salt 
food to ensure it is a priority in their organisations. 

2.7 Encourage schools to consider the nutritional value of their school catering in line with the 
School Food Plan and seek support from Public Health where they need it.

2.9 Be familiar with how much physical activity is recommended per week and encourage a 
whole-family approach to engaging in physical activity across children’s settings. 

2.10 Ensure that the Daily Mile is high on the agenda at Primary School meetings to ensure 
participating schools are still delivering in line with the recommendation or non-participating 
schools schools sign up.

3. Conclusion/ next steps

Page 69



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 8 of 10

This report demonstrates the wealth of activity being undertaken across the Public Health 
distributed model and much progress has been made. Unfortunately, the baseline data 
described above is the most recent data available from PHE and only future data releases 
will demonstrate the impact of these work streams. The next steps are summarised below.

3.1 Oral health 

 Refresh Oral Health Improvement Advisory Group action plan based on the findings 
from the oral health needs assessment

 Roll out toothbrushing clubs in early year’s settings

3.2 Healthy weight

 Development of the food strategy and action plan
 Continue to promote the Daily Mile
 Progress with sport funding bids

 3.3 Smoking in young people

 Refresh the Tobacco Control Alliance action plan based on the CLeaR peer-
assessment

 Pilot Smokefree schools
 Possibility of Smokefree markets whereby smoking outside Barnsley market will 

prohibited

 3.4 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service

 Complete the Service restructure
 Develop Healthy Child Programme Pathways
 Develop evaluation and outcome measures to demonstrate impact

4. Risks/ barriers

There are a number of risks and barriers to success across the numerous work streams. 
These are described below.

4.1 Oral health

The main risk to the successful roll out of the tooth brushing clubs is a lack of engagement 
from early years settings. A lack of manpower to deliver oral health training acts as a barrier 
to improving awareness and knowledge of good oral health but this is instead being delivered 
through e-learning. In addition, the software used by dentists reduces the ability for clinicians 
to share information with the Hospital. 

4.2 Healthy Weight

The main risk to the school food work is the lack of school engagement. In addition, lack of 
cooperation from school caterers is a potential barrier. Likewise one of the risks to the 
physical activity work is the drop out of schools who were delivering the Daily Mile. Barriers to 
delivery of the initiative among those not delivering are most often reported to be a lack of 
time or space. However, schools are reminded that the Daily Mile can include 15 minutes of 
any physical activity not necessarily a mile run. A further risk to the physical activity work is 
not being successful at obtaining the Families Fund monies; this will be a barrier to 

Page 70



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 9 of 10

implementing the physical activity work with family centres.

4.1 Smoking in young people

Again, the main risk to the smokefree schools work is the lack of school engagement, which 
has been experienced already, with schools failing to get involved in the pilot. The lack of 
public support for smokefree spaces is also a risk that could prevent this from being a 
success. Furthermore, the short term nature of the Tobacco Control Enforcement Officer role 
(until March 2018) presents a risk and generates some uncertainty in this area. This reduces 
the ability to undertake medium term planning of enforcement activities with partner 
organisations. 

4.2 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service

The main risk is failure to recruit to the vacant posts within the service.
5. Financial Implications

None for oral health, healthy weight or smoking in young people.

6. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement

6.1 Oral health

The Oral Health Improvement Advisory Group brings together key stakeholders (e.g., PHE, 
local dentists, community dental service, hospital, 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service, PSS, 
Healthwatch) to inform activities and take forward work from the action plan. Healthwatch 
undertook a dental survey (March-April 2016) with 188 primary school children to assess their 
views and knowledge on oral health. The report highlighted that the majority of the children 
surveyed did not know how long they should brush their teeth for nor what fluoride varnish 
was. However, on a positive note, three quarter of the primary school children surveyed 
reported that they had attended the dentists in the last 6 months.

6.2 Healthy Weight

Informal consultation is underway with a range of stakeholders from across BMBC with 
regards to the food strategy. This includes colleagues from: Public Health; School Catering; 
School Governance; Town Centre Retailers; Trading Standards/Environmental Health; Infant 
Feeding Team; Family Centres; Economic Regeneration; and the CCG. These discussions 
have identified gaps and opportunities for development. Furthermore, the Public Health 
Forum on the 12th September is an open invitation to BMBC staff and wider partners to 
discuss food and the priorities and action for Barnsley. The Daily Mile initiative has been 
presented at Primary Heads’ meetings and feedback sought. Print resources to encourage 
schools to participate were coproduced with a number of Primary School teachers. Yorkshire 
Sport Foundation also chair a children and young people’s sport stakeholder group to identify 
areas for development.

6.3 Smoking in Young People

The Tobacco Control Alliance brings together key stakeholders (e.g., PHE, 0-19 Public 
Health Nursing Service, CCG, Barnsley Hospital, SWYPFT, SY Fire Service, schools) to 
inform activities and take forward work from the action plan. Online and face to face 
consultations have been conducted with members of the general public around smokefree 
zones and public health are engaging with a number of schools on the smokefree schools 

Page 71



Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices: annual 
progress report Public Health / A.Booth / 18.08.17

Page 10 of 10

initiative.

6.4 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service

We have established a system wide stakeholder group to oversee the development of the 
delivery model for the service. The group has collectively agreed to use the Healthy Child 
Programme as a framework to review current, and develop new, clinical pathways. Early 
work of the group has been to establish sub groups to look specifically at antenatal pathways, 
children with long term conditions and complex needs, development of pathways with the 
Child Health and Immunisation teams and parenting support. Additionally work has 
progressed on the Enuresis pathway, GP Engagement and integrated work with Early Years 
specifically around the Early Help Panel and Integrated 2 -21/2 year review.

Please note that any presentations need to be sent to the CYPTrust mailbox no later than a 
day before the meeting. Presentations cannot be brought on a datastick. 

Page 72



Teenage Pregnancy  
in Barnsley 

 
Dr Amy Booth 

Health and Wellbeing Officer (Children and Young People) 

Education, Early Start and Prevention 

amybooth@barnsley.gov.uk 

 

 

Children, Young People and Families 
 a BRIGHTER future 

 

for every child … make every day count 365 

P
age 73

Item
 9

mailto:amybooth@barnsley.gov.uk


Introduction 

• Where we are now - data 

 

• Where we need to be - ten key factors 

 

• How do we get there - recommendations 

 

P
age 74



Trend data 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

R
at

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 f
e

m
al

e
s 

ag
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
 

Under 18 Conceptions 
Barnsley, Yorkshire and The Humber and England (1998 to 2015) 

England Yorkshire and the Humber Barnsley

Source: ONS (2017)  

P
age 75



Comparative data 

2
0

.8
 

2
4

.3
 

3
3

.7
 

3
1

.8
 

2
5

.5
 

2
3

.6
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

En
gl

an
d

Y&
H

B
ar

n
sl

ey

D
o

n
ca

st
er

R
o

th
e

rh
am

Sh
e

ff
ie

ld

R
at

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 f
e

m
al

e
s 

ag
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
 

Under 18 Conceptions 
South Yorkshire Local Authorities, 

Yorkshire and The Humber and England (2015)  

Source: ONS (2017)  

P
age 76



Statistical neighbours 

3
3

.7
 

3
1

.8
 

3
1

.5
 

2
9

.6
 

2
8

.9
 

2
6

.9
 

2
6

.4
 

2
5

.5
 

2
5

.1
 

2
5

.1
 

2
5

.0
 

2
5

.0
 

2
4

.7
 

2
4

.6
 

2
4

.3
 

2
0

.2
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

B
ar

n
sl

ey

D
o

n
ca

st
er

W
al

sa
ll

St
 H

el
en

s

St
o

ck
to

n
-o

n
-T

e
es

St
o

ke
-o

n
-T

re
n

t

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

am

R
o

th
e

rh
am

D
ar

lin
gt

o
n

Ta
m

e
si

d
e

K
ir

kl
ee

s

Te
lf

o
rd

 a
n

d
 W

re
ki

n

W
ig

an

C
al

d
er

d
al

e

D
u

d
le

y

W
ak

ef
ie

ld

R
at

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 f
e

m
al

e
s 

ag
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
 

Under 18 Conceptions 
Barnsley, Statistical Neighbours and England (2015)  

England

Source: ONS (2017)  

P
age 77



Forecast 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

R
at

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 f
e

m
al

e
s 

ag
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
 

Under 18 Conceptions 
Barnsley, Yorkshire and The Humber and England (1998 to 2015) 

England Y&H Barnsley

Source: ONS (2017)  

P
age 78



Ward level data 

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

C
e

n
tr

al

C
u

d
w

o
rt

h

D
ar

fi
e

ld

D
ar

to
n

 E
as

t

D
ar

to
n

 W
e

st

D
e

ar
n

e
 N

o
rt

h

D
e

ar
n

e
 S

o
u

th

D
o

d
w

o
rt

h

H
o

yl
an

d
 M

ilt
o

n

K
in

gs
to

n
e

M
o

n
k 

B
re

tt
o

n

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t

O
ld

 T
o

w
n

P
e

n
is

to
n

e
 E

as
t

P
e

n
is

to
n

e
 W

e
st

R
o

ck
in

gh
am

R
o

ys
to

n

St
 H

e
le

n
s

St
ai

rf
o

o
t

W
o

m
b

w
e

ll

W
o

rs
b

ro
u

gh

R
at

e
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 f
e

m
al

e
s 

ag
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
 

Under 18 conception rate between Barnlsey electoral wards 

2009-2011

2010-2012

2011-2013

2012-2014

Source: ONS (2017)  

P
age 79



Wider determinants 

P
age 80



Why it matters 

• Higher rates of smoking and poor mental health  

 

• Less likely to breastfeed 

 

• Young fathers 2x as likely to be unemployed at age 30 

 

• Babies of teenage mothers have: 13% higher risk of 
stillbirth; 56% higher risk of infant mortality; 63% 
higher risk of living in poverty 

 

• Impacts on school readiness 

P
age 81



Ten key factors 

P
age 82



Recommendations  

i. Evidence suggests that in order to narrow the gap in 
TP rates we should implement the ten factors 
described. 

 

ii. A local teenage pregnancy partnership group should 
complete a self-assessment against the 10 measures 
to identify gaps. 

 

iii. Areas of weakness will then inform the development 
of an action plan, taken forward by the group. 

 

P
age 83



Thank you 

P
age 84



Teenage Pregnancy in Barnsley
Education, Early Start and Prevention /A.Booth / 18.09.17

Page 1 of 4

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP

Date of meeting: 28th September

Report Title: Teenage Pregnancy in Barnsley

Author: Name: Dr Amy Booth
Job Title: Health and Wellbeing Officer
E-mail: amybooth@barnsley.gov.uk
Telephone: 01226774874

Status of report: Not confidential

Approved by: Richard Lynch

1. Purpose of report

This report supplements the presentation at the Children’s Trust Executive Group on 28th 
September on Teenage Pregnancy and seeks members’ approval of the recommendations 
outlined below.

The presentation will outline where we are now in terms of benchmarking against regional and 
national under 18 conception rate, where we need to be and what we need to do to achieve a 
reduction in the teenage pregnancy rate and narrow the gap between Barnsley and the rest of 
England.

This supplementary report describes in more detail the ten key factors found to have the 
biggest impact on reducing teenage pregnancy.

Factor What this means
1. Relationships and sex education 

in Schools
 Support all schools to deliver high-quality, 

comprehensive RSE 

 Schools should deliver a spiraling 
curriculum that starts early and builds up, 
as part of wider programme of evidence-
based PSHE 

 Give young people knowledge and skills to 
make healthy decisions about sex and 
relationships

 RSE that is relevant to young people in the 
21st century

2. Youth friendly sexual health 
services and condom distribution 
schemes

 Availability of well-publicised youth friendly 
sexual health services

 Increase access to (and uptake of) long-

Page 85



Teenage Pregnancy in Barnsley
Education, Early Start and Prevention /A.Booth / 18.09.17

Page 2 of 4

acting reversible contraception (LARC) 

 Increase access to (and use of) condoms 
through a condom distribution scheme

 Increase access to free emergency 
contraception

3. Targeted prevention for young 
people at risk

 Targeted youth support helps build a 
cohesive response to many of the key risk 
factors

 E.g., Looked After Children; 25% of young 
women leaving care are pregnant, 50% 
are pregnant within 18-24 months

 Work with mental health and substance 
misuse services to identify YP and 
coordinate support

4. Support for parents to discuss 
relationships and sexual health

 Facilitate ‘sex-positive’* discussions 
between parent/carers and children from 
an early age

 Increase parent/carer knowledge around 
sex and sexual health 

 Increase parent/carer confidence and 
communication skills in discussing 
relationships and sexual health

5. Training on relationships and sex 
education for health and non-
health professionals

 RSE training for health professionals to 
facilitate ‘sex-positive’ discussions

 Training for professionals in organisations 
working with the most vulnerable. E.g., 
Education Welfare Officers, Youth 
Workers, Social Workers etc.

6. Advice and access to 
contraception in non-health 
settings

 C-card locations across the Borough 
informed by children and young people

 School sexual health provision on-site

 Utilising community venues e.g., Family 
Centres and IKIC centres

7. Consistent messages to young 
people, parents and practitioners

 Whole-systems approach

 Encouraging ‘sex-positive’ discussions

 Regular updates for young people, parents 
and practitioners with information about 
services

Page 86



Teenage Pregnancy in Barnsley
Education, Early Start and Prevention /A.Booth / 18.09.17

Page 3 of 4

8. Early intervention and 
coordinated support for young 
parents

 Early identification and needs assessment 
in the antenatal period

 Dedicated, sustained support from a lead 
professional

 Effective referral pathways

 Ensure needs of teenage parents are 
considered in provision of wider services

9. Strong use of data for 
commissioning and monitoring 
progress

 Accurate and up-to-date data to ensure 
service provision is sufficient and based 
on need

 Additional local information to ensure 
identification of young people most at risk

 Information on wider determinants at ward 
level is also important

10. Strong leadership and 
accountability

 A strong senior champion who takes the 
lead in driving local action

 All key partners understand the 
interconnectedness of the teenage 
pregnancy vision and their agency’s 
contribution to its achievement

 Regular review and reporting to the 
Children's Trust

* Sex positive: an approach that is open, frank and positive about sex, that challenges 
negative societal attitudes to sex and embraces sexual diversity at the same time as 
emphasising the importance of consent and comprehensive sex and relationship education.

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to consider the following recommendations:

2.1 Evidence suggests that in order to narrow the gap in teenage pregnancy rates we should 
implement the ten factors described.

2.2 A local teenage pregnancy partnership group should complete a self-assessment against 
the 10 measures to identify gaps.

2.3 Areas of weakness will inform the development of an action plan, taken forward by the 
group.

3. Conclusion/ next steps

Work in partnership to ensure teenage pregnancy prevention is integrated across local 

Page 87



Teenage Pregnancy in Barnsley
Education, Early Start and Prevention /A.Booth / 18.09.17

Page 4 of 4

services, through the development and delivery of a local action plan.

Deliver the action plan through a task and finish group, utilising a multi-agency approach, 
including stakeholders across health, education, youth services and so on. 

4. Risks/ barriers

Further cuts to the public health funding and reduction in access to contraception and sexual 
health services.

Further cuts to adolescent services and reduction in wider advice and information services 
(e.g., Targeted Youth Support).

Late and inaccurate data. Mitigated through early requests through business intelligence 
workplan.

Lack of engagement/commitment from stakeholders – e.g., GPs, pharmacies, education 
settings with regards to sexual health service provision and delivery of Relationships and Sex 
Education. Mitigated by ensuring the right people are invited to the task and finish group from 
the beginning and clear consistent communication with stakeholder around objectives and 
benefits of the work.

Limited resource / capacity in services to be able to deliver against actions.

Lack of support from parents/carers in ensuring children and young people receive open and 
honest information about relationships and sexual health at home.

5. Financial Implications

None. 

6. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement

The Youth Council were presented with the proposed area of work and were in agreement 
that teenage pregnancy should be a priority for the council. They also called for Schools to 
back the “Curriculum for Life”, which covers Relationships and Sex Education and ensures 
that young people leaving education are equipped with the skills they need to have a healthy 
and successful life. This has been escalated to the Schools Alliance.

Several questions have also been added to the TYS Youth Audit to capture young people’s 
views about the content and quality of RSE in their schools and also about the delivery of 
sexual health services in Barnsley.

7. Appendices/ background papers

None.

Please note that any presentations need to be sent to the CYPTrust mailbox no later than a 
day before the meeting. Presentations cannot be brought on a datastick. 

Page 88



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



2018 

TEG 

Meeting 

s  

Responsible person/ 

organisation

Outcomes

20-Jan 03-Mar 28-Apr 09-Jun 21-Jul 28-Sep 13-Nov Jan

Key Areas for Improvement
Early Help  Developing and improving our Early Help offer, integrated across 

all partners and rooted in our communities. 

Emotional Health and Wellbeing Transforming access to the right support, at the right time in 

order to improve the emotional health and wellbeing of children 

and young people. 

Behaviour and attendance Improving behaviour and tackling persistent non-attendance in 

schools.

1 Standing agenda items:

1.1 Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board (BSCB) minutes Provide minutes/ a verbal update
    

Bob Dyson After every BSCB 

meeting

1.2 Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision Review annually



Richard Lynch

Annually (Sept/Oct)

ToR/ Accountability and 

Governance

Deferred till Nov by RL 

1.3 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan Receive updates on progress
      

Julie Govan
Every meeting

(e-mail from Julie Govan 

24.11.2014)

1.4 TEG Work Programme review Highlight additions and forthcoming items        Richard Lynch Every meeting

2 Children and Young People's Plan Monitoring 

CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights/ risks

The CYP Plan monitoring template aims to articulate those 

actions and progress measures against outcomes which the 

partnership agrees collectively to support. Sub-group leads 

to report on performance measures to monitor/ challenge; 

provide updates into TEG; highlight where there are 

problems with performance.

Identify issues for escalation

   

CYP Plan Champions. The 

responsibility of the identified 

TEG champions is to obtain 

progress against outcomes for 

reporting to TEG on a quarterly 

basis.

Theme leads/ all members

Quarterly

TEG 24 Nov 2016 (item 7).

TEG 7 Nov 2014

1.4 & 2. combined into one 

per Richard Lynch 

instruction

2.1 Tackling child poverty and improving family life (Key area for improvement: Early Help) In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 



Andrea Hoyland/                        

Jayne Hellowell

Annually

Deferred from March 2017 

meeting - e-mails from 

Andrea Hoyland 20.2.2017 

& 27.3.2017 & 6.6.2017

2.2 Improving staff skills to deliver quality services In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 
 Amanda Glew Annually

2.2.1 Children's Workforce Development TEG agreed to support the approved implementation plan by 

continued commitment to partnership working via the Trust 

Workforce Development Group, to consider at a future meeting a 

stronger assurance/ evaluation framework; and to receive regular 

updates on progress.

   Amanda Glew Regular updates

TEG 17 Jan 2014 (item 12) 

E-mail from Amanda 

30.3.2017.

2.3 Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health (Key area for 

improvement: Emotional Health and Wellbeing)

In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 
 

Brigid Reid/Patrick Otway
Annually

2.3.1 Behaviour support and emotional wellbeing (Key area for improvement: Behaviour and attendance) Action focused discussion


Brigid Reid

2.3.2 Access to therapeutic support and waiting times An update to be received by a future TEG meeting.   Brigid Reid/ Claire Strachan TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 8

2.4 Keeping children and young people safe In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 


Bob Dyson/ Mel John-Ross
Annually

2.4.1 Early Help Self Assessment A report of findings to be completed and available by the 28th 

April 2017 and presented to TEG and BSCB (see briefing report 

from Mel JR)



Margaret Libreri/ Phil 

Hollingsworth

TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 14 

and e-mail circulated to 

members 2.2.2017

2.4.2 Managing risk for children in care placed outside the Borough Agreed that this would be brought back to a future TEG meeting. 


Mel John-Ross TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 3

2.4.3 Safeguarding Awareness Week To help promote it wider than the BSCB and BSAB. Bob Dyson/ Mel John-Ross e-mail from Bob Dyson 

16.2.2017

2.4.4 Neglect Strategy To be considered by TEG once it has been to the BSCB on 24 

March 2017.


Bob Dyson/ Debbie Mercer e-mail from Bob Dyson 

16.2.2017

2.5 Improving education, achievement and employability In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 


Margaret Libreri
Annually

2.5.1 Vulnerable children with SEN Review of vulnerable children with SEN. SEN Strategy Group to 

drive this work forward at pace and a progress update report to 

be received by TEG at a future meeting. 

 

Margaret Libreri TEG 6 Oct 2016 (item 5)  

TEG 20 Jan 2017 (item 6)

2.5.2 Local Area Special Educational Needs Ofsted Inspection Ensure inspection Readiness  Margaret Libreri ECG 11.1.2016 (item 8)

2.5.3 Peer review on children missing education Results of a peer review on children missing education, taking 

place in the spring, to be brought back to TEG. 


Margaret Libreri TEG 24 Nov 2016 (item 4.1) 

Also see action log.

2.5.4 SEND Strategy SEND Strategy and Action Plan  Margaret Libreri

2.5.5 Careers advice and guidance Action focused discussion



Tom Smith see e-mails 11.4.2017 and 

12.5.2017

RL/TS agreed to move to 

November meeting - email 

14.9.17

2.5.6 Alliance Board TEG to receive more information around the work that the 

Alliance is involved with, including the work programme. At the 

July meeting it was agreed that Chairs of the all the groups would 

meet and a summary would be produced of all the work of the 

alliance that could be shared at the September TEG meeting to 

look at where partners can support the alliance. 



Margaret Libreri TEG 21 July 2017 (see 

Action Log)

TEG Work Programme 2017

Agenda Items Action Dates of future TEG meetings during 2017 Frequency Source

P
age 113

Item
 14



2018 

TEG 

Meeting 

s  

Responsible person/ 

organisation

Outcomes

20-Jan 03-Mar 28-Apr 09-Jun 21-Jul 28-Sep 13-Nov Jan

TEG Work Programme 2017

Agenda Items Action Dates of future TEG meetings during 2017 Frequency Source

2.6 Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices In-depth report on the work of the sub-group supporting this 

outcome, performance highlights and risks 


Public Health/                              

Alicia Marcroft
Annually

2.6.1 Smoking in Young People. Public Health strategic priority 1. Update on progress.  Public Health, Diane Lee/Kaye 

Mann

TEG 6 Oct 2016 (item 9.1)

2.6.2 0-19 Public Health - HCP progress against new 0 – 19 model An update on the Healthy Start 0-19 scheme to be provided to 

the TEG meeting in March as part of the 0-19 update

  Alicia Marcroft TEG 17 March 2016. TEG 

20 Jan 2017, item 9.

2.6.3 Healthy Weight Alliance - National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) Receive progress update  Rebecca Clarke TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 10

2.6.4 Oral health  Public Health strategic priority 2. Agreed in March 2016 to 

receive updates on progress in relation to these outcomes in the 

Public Health Strategy.

Public Health, Kaye Mann TEG 17 March & Oct 2016

3 Agenda Items:

3.1 Stronger Communities Partnership  Provide updates to future meetings    Phil Hollingsworth

Regularly

TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 8; 

TEG 3 March 2017, item 6.

3.2 Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements An action focused discussion had been held regarding how to 

collectively secure more foster carers in Barnsley. It was agreed 

that a progress report be received in six months' time. 
 

Richard Lynch/ Jon Banwell Executive Commissioning 

Group 23 May 2016, item 5. 

TEG meeting 20 Jan 2017, 

item 7.

3.3 All Age Prevention and Early Help Strategy (Early Help) Annual position statement on the delivery of the Strategy and 

priorities for the year



Phil Hollingsworth

Annually

TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 4.1 

(was on for 24 November 

2016 agenda). See TEG 

minutes 24 Nov 2016 and 

action log item 6(i). TEG 3 

March 2017, item 8.

3.4 Universal information and advice across all partnerships - findings and key deliverables To be considered at a future TEG meeting. Denise to be advised 

when to schedule this for. 

Phil Hollingsworth 6 Oct 2016 TEG  - 4.1 

action log item 6(ii)

3.5 Transport Matt Gladstone to provide a progress report in relation to the 

issues raised by young people at the joint TEG/BSCB meeting.

  Matt Gladstone 24 Nov TEG 2016 meeting, 

item 7. TEG 3 March 2017, 

item 9.

Deferred from 28 Sept 17 

meeting to 13 November 

2017 meeting

3.6 Teenage Pregnacy Amy Booth  (see Richard for more information) 

4. Updates on progress

4.1 Physical activity Public Health strategic priority 3. Agreed in March 2016 to 

receive updates on progress in relation to outcomes in the Public 

Health Strategy. Update to be received in April re. number of 

schools that have signed up to the Daily Mile programme. 



Place/ Public Health, Julie 

Tolhurst, Adam Norris

TEG 17 March 2016; 6 Oct 

2016 Item 4.1

4.2 Information sharing Baseline position to come back to a future TEG meeting.

 

Sara Hydon/ Wendy Lowder 24 Nov TEG meeting (item 

6). TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 

2.

4.3 Progress update from Parent and Carers Forum / (ECG action log Feb 2017 - working with Contact 

A Family,  DfE Advisor,  SENDIASS and a small group of parents on options for developing a new 

co-production model, which will broaden the participation of parents beyond the traditional forum 

model and approach)

Report on progress  



Margaret Libreri

Annually

Agreed at TEG 29 April 

2016, item 5 (last bullet); 

update on ECG action log 

Feb 2017 noted that there is 

no longer a parent carer 

forum in place

4.4 Future in Minds’ progress from service (SWYFT) SWYPFT Requested via e-mail 

21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins 

(obo Sean Rayner)

4.5 Sexual Health update from service (Spectrum) Spectrum
Requested via e-mail 

21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins

4.6 LAC CAMHS Pathway Report on progress   SWYPFT Reguested by Brigid - 

email16.08.17

P
age 114



Report to Children Young People and Families Trust

Stronger Communities Partnership Review - Update Report

Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to provide the Safer Barnsley Partnership with a 
progress update in relation to the recommendations outlined in the Stronger 
Communities Partnership Development Session (May 2017) Output Report.

Introduction & Context

Following the development of the All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020), the 
Partnership held a development session in May 2017 to bring all agencies together 
across the partnership governance structure to take stock of progress achieved and 
plan for delivery to 2020.

The key findings report was circulated to the Stronger Communities Partnership 
Board members for consideration in July 2017 and contained a series of 
recommendations to inform the continuous improvement of the Stronger 
Communities Partnership and its associated delivery infrastructure.

 

Progress Update

As a catalyst to continue momentum from the development session, Delivery Group 
Lead Officers met July 2017 to discuss and formulate the next steps and priority 
actions to take forward the recommendations outlined in the Development Session 
Output Report.  The following summarises the key actions agreed by the group:  

Recommendation 1: A full governance review is undertaken on the partnership 
and its associated delivery infrastructure

Purpose:  The focus of the recommendation is to ensure that the Stronger 
Communities Partnership governance structures remain fit-for-purpose and is able to 
delivery against the joint strategic priorities set out in the All Age Early Help Strategy 
(2017-2020). 

Progress Update:  The Delivery Group Lead Officers agreed to establish a Task 
and Finish Group and invite Delivery Group members to volunteer to take part in the 
Task and Finish Group.  Volunteer requests have been circulated to all Delivery 
Group members and the first Task and Finish Group will be held September 2017.  
The group will oversee the governance review assessing synergies across the 
partnership landscape to ensure complementary approaches and reduce duplication.  
A recommendation report will be considered by the Stronger Communities 
Partnership in November 2017.  

Page 115

Item 15



Recommendation 2:  A clear brand is developed for the Stronger Communities 
Partnership.

Purpose:  The focus of the recommendation is to ensure that the work of the 
Stronger Communities Partnership can be clearly identified.

Progress Update:  The Delivery Group Lead Officers tasked Mel Fitzpatrick with 
liaising with Barnsley Council Communications to develop a unique branding for the 
Stronger Communities Partnership.  Branding ideas will be considered by the Task 
and Finish Group in September 2017 and proposals will be included in the 
recommendation report to be considered by the Stronger Communities Partnership 
November 2017.

Recommendation 3:  A system-wide performance framework based around 
impact and outcomes and aligned to the strategic priorities is developed.

Purpose:  The focus of the recommendation is to develop a robust and 
proportionate performance framework ensuring the triangulation of qualitative as well 
as quantitative data in order to demonstrate impact against the All Age Early Help 
Strategy (2017-2020).

Progress Update:  The Delivery Group Lead Officers agreed to invite 
representatives from the Council’s Business Improvement and Intelligence Team to 
the Task and Finish Group meeting in September 2017 with a view to liaising with 
colleagues across the system to develop a stratified performance framework aligned 
to the strategic priorities outlined in the All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020). The 
draft performance framework will be presented to the Stronger Communities 
Partnership for consideration at the November 2017 meeting. 

Recommendation 4:  Delivery Groups to review Delivery Plans to support the 
delivery of the priorities set out in the All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020)

Purpose:  The focus of the recommendation is to ensure that robust delivery plans 
are in place with a clear golden thread to the priorities set out in the All Age Early 
Help Strategy (2017-2020).

Progress Update:  Delivery Group Lead Officers have been drafting refreshed 
delivery plans aligning to the strategic priorities as outlined in the All Age Early Help 
Strategy (2017-2020).  This will support the continued delivery against the Stronger 
Communities Partnership priorities and key focus areas pending the outcome of the 
governance review.  Delivery Plans will be further refreshed to reflect any 
recommendations taken forward as a result of the governance review.

Page 116



Recommendation 5:  Develop a Whole System Early Help Workforce 
Development Programme

Purpose:  The focus of the recommendation is to build on existing workforce 
development provision ensuring a modular All Age based approach which is 
accessible by the workforce across the system in addition to community 
representatives. 

Progress Update:  Delivery Group Lead Officers agreed that the Council’s 
Workforce Development Unit would be approached to lead on the development of an 
All Age Workforce Development Programme.  It was proposed that the Task and 
Finish Group would oversee the development of the programme guided by a sub-
group of multi-agency workforce development representatives from across the 
system.  A progress update will be provided to the November 2017 meeting outlining 
specific timescales for development and implementation.

Conclusion & Next Steps

Task and Finish Group has been established and will meet bi-weekly to progress all 
the recommendations outlined in the Development Session Key Findings Report.  A 
further report will be submitted to the Stronger Communities Partnership in 
November 2017 to outline proposals in response to the findings and 
recommendations from the Development Session.

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Positive outcome through taking a different approach following a negative incident

A proactive approach with the local community involving a local school (the Barnsley 
Academy, Farm Road), Berneslai Homes, and the Police, and the outcome of this approach 
has been the production of art work (photographs attached). With the Intention to display 
these works in the main corridor at Kendray Hospital.

Page 119

Item 16



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122


	Agenda
	4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 21 July 2017 - for accuracy
	4.1 Action Log/Matters Arising
	5. Work of the Alliance Board
	6. Barnsley Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (BMASH) Information Sharing Agreement
	Item no 6 ISA MASH Final 29 July 2016

	7. Tackling Child Poverty and Improving Family Life
	8. Supporting Children, Young People and Families to make healthy lifestyles
	9. Teenage Pregnancy
	item no 9 20170928 Teenage pregnancy

	10. Sufficiency Strategy for Special Educational Need Provision (SEND)
	Item no 10TEG cover report Sufficiency Strategy

	13. Continuous Service Improvement Plan
	14. TEG Work Programme Review
	15. Stronger Communities Partnership Update
	16. Kendray Art Work

